# Types and aspects of support that young carers need and value, and barriers and enablers to access: the REBIAS-YC qualitative study

Nicola Brimblecombe,<sup>1\*</sup> Madeleine Stevens,<sup>1</sup> Sara Gowen,<sup>2</sup> Jo Moriarty,<sup>3</sup> Robin Skyer,<sup>4</sup> Annette Bauer<sup>1</sup> and Camille Bou<sup>1</sup>

Published September 2024 DOI: 10.3310/ABAT6761

## Plain language summary

Types and aspects of support that young carers need and value, and barriers and enablers to access: the REBIAS-YC qualitative study

Health and Social Care Delivery Research 2024; Vol. 12: No. 36

DOI: 10.3310/ABAT6761

NIHR Journals Library www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Care Policy and Evaluation Centre, London School of Economics and Political Science, London, UK

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Sheffield Young Carers, Sheaf Bank Business Park, Unit R7b, Sheffield, UK

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>NIHR Policy Research Unit in Health & Social Care, The Policy Institute, King's College London, London, UK

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>Sociology, Social Policy and Criminology, University of Southampton, Southampton, Hampshire, UK

<sup>\*</sup>Corresponding author n.s.brimblecombe@lse.ac.uk

# Plain language summary

Many children and young people in England provide support to family members who are disabled, have mental or physical ill health, or misuse drugs or alcohol. They are sometimes called young or young adult carers. Providing care often brings satisfaction and a sense of pride but can also have negative effects on young people's lives. The study aimed to find out their views about what would best support them and the people they care for.

The study asked two important questions: (1) What are the difficulties faced by young carers and the people they support in seeking, accessing and receiving the right type of support at the right times? (2) What services and support do they find helpful, what support would they like, and what needs would it meet?

To answer these questions, we held group discussions (focus groups) and in-depth interviews with 133 young carers with a range of caring and life circumstances and 17 parents receiving help from a young carer. We also held workshops with 19 practitioners who are involved in identifying, supporting and funding services for young carers and their families.

They told us that the types of support that they and their families need, and value when received, include:

- support for the people they care for, so they are providing less practical and emotional care
- support to help with any negative impacts of providing care and with other life issues
- information and advice about services, wider resources and support
- someone trusted to talk to
- greater awareness, recognition and understanding
- choice, flexibility and working together to develop plans and solutions

We found a great deal of unmet need for support, and variation in the type and quality of support received, including across geographical areas.

Action is now needed to consistently and sustainably implement the types of support that young carers and their families say they need and value.

## **Health and Social Care Delivery Research**

ISSN 2755-0079 (Online)

A list of Journals Library editors can be found on the NIHR Journals Library website

Health and Social Care Delivery Research (HSDR) was launched in 2013 and is indexed by Europe PMC, DOAJ, INAHTA, Ulrichsweb™ (ProQuest LLC, Ann Arbor, MI, USA), NCBI Bookshelf, Scopus and MEDLINE.

This journal is a member of and subscribes to the principles of the Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE) (www.publicationethics.org/).

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk

This journal was previously published as *Health Services and Delivery Research* (Volumes 1–9); ISSN 2050-4349 (print), ISSN 2050-4357 (online)

The full HSDR archive is freely available to view online at www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/hsdr.

## Criteria for inclusion in the Health and Social Care Delivery Research journal

Manuscripts are published in *Health and Social Care Delivery Research* (HSDR) if (1) they have resulted from work for the HSDR programme, and (2) they are of a sufficiently high scientific quality as assessed by the reviewers and editors.

### **HSDR** programme

The HSDR programme funds research to produce evidence to impact on the quality, accessibility and organisation of health and social care services. This includes evaluations of how the NHS and social care might improve delivery of services.

For more information about the HSDR programme please visit the website at https://www.nihr.ac.uk/explore-nihr/funding-programmes/health-and-social-care-delivery-research.htm

#### This article

The research reported in this issue of the journal was funded by the HSDR programme or one of its preceding programmes as award number NIHR129645. The contractual start date was in January 2021. The draft manuscript began editorial review in April 2023 and was accepted for publication in January 2024. The authors have been wholly responsible for all data collection, analysis and interpretation, and for writing up their work. The HSDR editors and production house have tried to ensure the accuracy of the authors' manuscript and would like to thank the reviewers for their constructive comments on the draft document. However, they do not accept liability for damages or losses arising from material published in this article.

This article presents independent research funded by the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR). The views and opinions expressed by authors in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, the NIHR, the HSDR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care. If there are verbatim quotations included in this publication the views and opinions expressed by the interviewees are those of the interviewees and do not necessarily reflect those of the authors, those of the NHS, the NIHR, the HSDR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care.

This article was published based on current knowledge at the time and date of publication. NIHR is committed to being inclusive and will continually monitor best practice and guidance in relation to terminology and language to ensure that we remain relevant to our stakeholders.

Copyright © 2024 Brimblecombe *et al.* This work was produced by Brimblecombe *et al.* under the terms of a commissioning contract issued by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. This is an Open Access publication distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution CC BY 4.0 licence, which permits unrestricted use, distribution, reproduction and adaptation in any medium and for any purpose provided that it is properly attributed. See: https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/. For attribution the title, original author(s), the publication source – NIHR Journals Library, and the DOI of the publication must be cited.

Published by the NIHR Journals Library (www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk), produced by Newgen Digitalworks Pvt Ltd, Chennai, India (www.newgen.co).